HOBBS HILL WOOD PRIMARY SCHOOL Health and Attendance Policy

Committee	Resources
Author	Herts for Learning (May 2024) including local arrangements.
Approved By Governing Body	12 March 2025
Frequency of Review	2 years
Next review Date	Spring 2027

Our Vision

Aiming for excellence; creating equal opportunities for each individual to develop academic and life skills so they can make a positive contribution to their community and become lifelong learners.

Our Mission

Inspiring confident and independent learners

Our Values

We believe that children should be able to enjoy the rights and uphold the responsibilities of the school charter.

School Charter

We have the right to:	We have a responsibility to:
Be safe in school and online	Behave in a safe way
Learn	Listen and try our best
Be supported with our learning	Support and help each other
Be happy, play and have fun	Share, be kind, polite and considerate towards others
Be respected and treated fairly	Be helpful and responsible
A clean and purposeful environment	Recycle and keep the class and school environment tidy
Speak and be heard	Listen and respect each other's opinion



CONTENTS

1.	SCOPE	. 3
2.	INTRODUCTION	. 3
3.	DEFINITIONS	. 3
4.	BREACHES OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE	. 3
5.	TRIGGER POINTS	. 3
6.	SICK PAY	. 4
7.	PERSONAL MEDICAL APPOINTMENTS	. 4
8.	NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS	. 4
9.	CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS	. 4
10.	MAINTAINING CONTACT	. 5
11.	RETURN TO WORK FOLLOWING A PERIOD OF ABSENCE	. 6
12.	OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REFERRAL	. 6
13.	INFORMAL AND FORMAL ABSENCE MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES	. 7
14.	ILL HEALTH RETIREMENT	10
15.	APPENDIX 1 – Sick Pay Entitlement (teachers under the 'burgundy book')	11
16.	APPENDIX 2a - Sick Pay Entitlement (support staff) – 2023 Future Workforce Terms	12
17.	APPENDIX 3 – Self-certification and return to work meeting	13



1. SCOPE

This policy and procedure applies to all employees and workers. It has been subject to consultation with Trade Unions. It does not form part of anybody's contract of employment and may be varied.

2. INTRODUCTION

The aim of this policy is to set out our approach to sickness absence management, including but not limited to:

- trigger points;
- the requirements for notification;
- the requirements for certification;
- our position on payment during sickness absence;
- ensuring employees and managers are aware of their responsibilities when sickness absence occurs;
- ensuring that any sickness absence is dealt with fairly and consistently; and
- our position on both short term and long-term absences from the workplace.

3. DEFINITIONS

This policy covers short-term and long-term absences. The definitions used in this policy are:

- Short-term absence: frequent, intermittent, short periods of absence
- Long-term absence: any continuous period of absence over 28 days (calendar)
- Trigger points: absence monitoring system to highlight levels or patterns of sickness that require further attention.

4. BREACHES OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE

In the case of a breach, employees may be subject to disciplinary proceedings and the possible withdrawal of sick pay.

Breaches include, but are not limited to, a failure to follow notification and certification requirements, if there is reason to believe the sickness absence is not genuine and where an employee undertakes inappropriate activities, including working for another organisation, whilst off sick.

Other relevant polices may include Disciplinary, Leave of Absence and Flexible Working.

5. TRIGGER POINTS

HFL Education

It is hoped that close monitoring and discussions regarding absence and attendance will result in an improved attendance record. However, if levels of sickness absence reach a trigger point, this may be discussed with the employee and managed in line with our absence management procedure.

In any six-month period, the trigger points are:

- three separate occasions of sickness absence
- a continuous sickness absence of 10 working days or more
- an absence which appears to have a recurring pattern i.e., frequent absenteeism around a

weekend.

These trigger points are for guidance only and we reserve the right to raise concerns at an earlier stage where there are reasonable grounds to do so, or at a later stage, where appropriate.

6. SICK PAY

6.1 Statutory sick pay (SSP)

Subject to compliance with absence management procedures, we will pay statutory sick pay (SSP) to eligible employees at the national rate, which is subject to the deduction of tax and national insurance contributions.

SSP is payable from the fourth day of absence and up to 28 weeks.

To qualify for SSP, employees must complete and provide us with a self-certification form.

6.2 Occupational sick pay

Subject to compliance with absence management procedures, we will pay occupational sick pay. Eligibility for occupational sick pay including duration and level of payment is in accordance with the relevant conditions of service.

7. PERSONAL MEDICAL APPOINTMENTS

Reasonable time-off may be allowed where appointments are unable to be scheduled outside of working hours. Ordinarily time-off for such meetings is unpaid unless discretion is applied by the Headteacher / School Business Manager.

Before arranging non-urgent medical appointments, employees should seek approval from the Headteacher/School Business Manager (using the 'Application for Leave of Absence for Staff' form available from the School Office) and should endeavour to arrange appointments at the beginning or end of the day, or during lunchtime, to minimise the time they have to be absent from work. Evidence of the appointment may be requested by the school.

8. NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

8.1 First day of absence

It is a requirement that employees follow the school's procedure to notify of any absence, namely:

Inform us – before 8 am on your first day of absence phone the main school number 01442
 401222 and then press '7' and provide your name, reason for absence and estimated date of return to work. (Note option '7' is not listed publicly – it is a private option for staff use only.)

In circumstances where the employee is incapacitated or unable to contact the school to report their absence, their next of kin should do so on their behalf.

A failure to report an absence in accordance with the school's process could be constituted as a breach of policy and reporting requirements. This may result in sick pay being withheld and it should be noted that there is no obligation to reinstate pay in such cases.

It is not permissible to contact the school by email without prior permission.

8.2 Ongoing absence

For each subsequent sick day after the first day of absence, the employee should:



© HFL Education

 Keep in touch – before 3 pm daily phone the main school number 01442 401222 and then press '7' and giving your name and a brief update

A failure to report ongoing absence in accordance with arrangements agreed with a line manager, could be constituted as a breach of policy and reporting requirements. This may result in sick pay being withheld and it should be noted that there is no obligation to reinstate pay in such cases.

9. CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

9.1 Absence up to 7 days

Employees are permitted to self-certificate for any sickness absence up to 7 days (calendar, inclusive of bank holidays).

A complete self-certification form should be provided to us upon return to work in order for sick pay to be processed.

Unless specifically requested, employees are not required to provide a statement of fitness for work i.e., 'doctors fit note', for absences up to 7 calendar days.

9.2 Absence over 7 days

Where sickness absence lasts longer than 7 calendar days, medical evidence is required in the form of a 'fit note' and should cover the duration of the absence.

If a fit note expires and the employee is not well enough to return to work, the employee should obtain a further fit note to ensure their absence is certified and should provide it to us at the earliest opportunity.

A failure to maintain certification in the form of a fit note for the period of absence may constitute a breach of policy and reporting requirements. This may result in sick pay being withheld and it should be noted that there is no obligation to reinstate pay in such cases. Should an employee become aware that they are unlikely to be able to provide a new certificate in good time, they should ensure that they report this at the earliest opportunity, and in any case prior to the current note expiring, with confirmation on when it can be expected.

We reserve the right to require employees to obtain a fit note for absences of any duration. In circumstances where the employee incurs a cost for obtaining a fit note for an absence up to 7 days, we will reimburse reasonable costs incurred.

9.3 Certification during non-term time

Where an employee working a 'term-time only' pattern is not fit to work on the last day of term, or half term, and is not fit for work on the first subsequent day of the new term, a fit note is required to cover the holiday period.

9.4 Sickness during annual leave

If an employee becomes unwell during annual leave and wishes to treat this as sick leave and reclaim annual leave, they will need to provide appropriate certification as per paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2.

10. MAINTAINING CONTACT

It is a requirement that a reasonable level of contact between us and employees is maintained during a period of absence.



© HFL Education

It is anticipated that at an early stage in the absence, arrangements will be made as to the frequency and form contact is to take.

A failure to maintain reasonable contact may be dealt with under the Disciplinary Policy.

11. RETURN TO WORK FOLLOWING A PERIOD OF ABSENCE

It is good practice for return-to-work meetings to be carried out when an employee returns to work following a period of absence. This will be carried out by the line manager or other appropriate person.

A record of the meeting should be made using the self-certification and return to work form. A copy of this form should be given to the employee and the original placed on their personal record file.

The purpose of the meeting is to welcome the employee back to work and to establish that they are fit to carry out their duties. The meeting will establish the reasons for the absence and highlight any additional support required. Any concerns regarding absence from work may be raised and measures identified to support the employee to improve attendance and help prevent its reoccurrence.

Employees should be made aware when they are near to reaching trigger points and the potential implications of this.

12. OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REFERRAL

During any period of absence (short-term and long-term) or upon return to work, we may require employees to engage with an occupational health provider, to obtain medical advice into their health, wellbeing or into the reason for the absence. Employees may also request a referral to occupational health services to obtain support.

Employees are expected to attend an appointment and co-operate with the occupational health professional and may be asked to provide consent for the release of medical information.

The School Business Manager / line manager should discuss the reason for the referral directly with the employee before making a referral.

12.1 When to make a referral

We may consider making a referral to occupational health in the following circumstances (this list is not exhaustive)

- where it is anticipated or known that the absence is going to last four weeks or more (the absence need not have exceeded four weeks at the time of making the referral)
- where there is a concern over persistent short-term absence prior to or during an attendance improvement plan
- where a trigger point is met (unless a referral has already been undertaken recently)
- where there appears to be an underlying medical condition
- when an employee has been absent with, or appears to be suffering from, mental health issues (i.e., stress, anxiety, depression)
- where there are concerns about an employee's health and/or safety in the workplace and medical advice is required.

Referrals may not be necessary for routine procedures which require a fixed period of convalescence, unless complications arise.



12.2 Occupational health recommendations

The recommendations contained within a report from an occupational health provider are advisory.

The report may contain recommendations of support and reasonable adjustments including a phased return to work or temporary or permanent adjustments to an employee's role. We will discuss the report with the employee, and we will make a decision as to whether recommendations are reasonable, sustainable and can be implemented.

In the event that the employee is unable to fulfil the role, retirement or termination of employment on ill health grounds capability may be considered.

13. INFORMAL AND FORMAL ABSENCE MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

The management of absence is based on the principle that, whilst absence due to ill health will not usually be the fault of an employee, there may come a point where the employee is deemed incapable of undertaking the role they were employed to do.

The point at which a manager decides to commence the formal process will vary from case to case.

Timescales for each stage will depend on individual circumstances and some sickness absence issues may be dealt with over a longer or shorter period than others.

Absence review meetings may be undertaken by the employee's manager, a more senior manager or panel of governors as appropriate.

13.1 Right to be accompanied

The employee has the right to be accompanied at a formal meeting by a trade union representative or appropriate work colleague.

The employee should provide the name of the companion within 3 working days of the meeting. Where the chosen companion is unavailable on the day scheduled for the meeting, the employee may request the meeting is rescheduled within 5 working days of the original date. If the employee is unable to attend the meeting in this timeframe, the meeting may take place in a timeframe at our discretion. If the companion remains unavailable, the employee may be asked to choose another companion.

There is no right to be accompanied at informal meetings. This will only be permitted where it is deemed to be in the interests of early resolution and where there are particular circumstances in which an employee needs additional support. In such cases an independent note-taker may also be present. A delay to enable the attendance of a companion to an informal meeting will be discretionary.

During the meeting the companion may put the employee's case forward and confer with the employee, they may not answer on the employee's behalf or address the attendees if the employee does not want this.

13.2 Informal absence review meetings

Informal absence review meetings should be arranged to gather information and discuss with the employee; the cause of the absence, anticipated return to work, fitness for duties, support, and reasonable adjustments.

The employee should be advised of any sickness absence concerns and feedback should be constructive, with the emphasis being placed on finding ways to support the employee and improve



© HFL Education

attendance wherever possible. The employee should be given the opportunity to provide feedback and to respond to any questions from the manager.

An attendance improvement plan (AIP) may be an outcome of an informal meeting in cases of persistent short-term absence or a series of intermittent absences. An informal meeting will not result in any formal warnings being given to the employee.

13.3 Attendance improvement plans (AIP)

An attendance improvement plan is a tool used to record the attendance level an employee needs to achieve. It is used to improve and maintain attendance to an acceptable level and can be implemented in both informal and formal management procedures.

The AIP can be used to re-align expectations around attendance standards, measure progress against those standards and put in place specific support mechanisms to ensure that a more consistent and effective level of attendance is achieved.

The AIP should give the employee adequate time to demonstrate attendance has improved in a sustainable manner and should include details of the support offered to help improve attendance levels.

Throughout the review period, the employee's progress will be reviewed to assess if any further action and/or support is required. If the employee's attendance levels have not improved to an acceptable standard within the period agreed, consideration will be given to the management of the absence moving forward, including escalating the process to the formal stage.

13.4 Formal meetings

If an employee's absence is of concern and/ or informal action has not succeeded in improving attendance to an acceptable level, consideration will be given to whether there are grounds for commencing the formal procedure. This can be applied to cases of frequent short-term and long-term sickness absence.

The purpose of the formal process will be to give an employee support to help them to achieve the expected attendance levels. If improvement is not made or maintained, formal sanctions may be issued to manage the absence and communicate expectations.

At formal meetings, employees will be given the chance to state their case and raise any factors they wish to have considered.

At every stage of the formal absence management procedure, the employee will:

- be given advance notice of any formal meeting in writing
- be advised in writing of the nature of the attendance concerns
- have the right to be accompanied by their professional association/ trade union representative or appropriate work colleague
- have a right of appeal against any decision made.

Employees should make all reasonable efforts to attend meetings convened under this policy. If the employee fails to attend without good reason or is persistently unable to attend due to health issues, a meeting may be convened, and a decision taken based on the available evidence in the absence of the employee.



13.4.1 Formal meeting conversation

The following matters, depending on the nature of the case, may be discussed during formal meetings:

- circumstances of the absence and actions taken to date, including a summary of absence records
- the reason for the absence, how much longer it is likely to persist and if the employee will be able to return to their job
- the operational impact of the absence
- the contents of any occupational health reports and/ or medical evidence and whether there is a requirement for further occupational health input
- relevant risk assessments or other plans implemented as part of the informal process
- attendance improvement plans and whether the targets were met
- relevant issues or representations raised by the employee
- grounds for concern and appropriate action
- reasonable adjustments and/or re-deployment
- if the ongoing absence could result in termination this should be disclosed
- timescale for further meetings
- any other reasonable areas for discussion.

13.5 Formal meeting outcomes

Formal meetings will adjourn in order for those hearing the case to consider whether a sanction should be issued to the employee. The outcome can either be communicated to the employee after the adjournment on the same day, or alternatively, the employee can be written to and informed of the outcome, if the duration of the adjournment is likely to be lengthy.

The type of sanction issued will be based on the specifics of the absence. A series of warnings are not fault-based sanctions for absence, but an indication that ongoing absence could result in the termination of employment.

The outcomes of a formal meeting can include:

- first written warning and/or an attendance improvement plan
- final written warning and/ or an attendance improvement plan
- dismissal: where the employee has been issued with formal first and final written warnings and continues to be unable to exercise their duties
- dismissal: where the employee has not been issued with a first or final written warning but is unable to exercise their duties due to ill health capability.

Prior to a dismissal of this nature, the following will be taken into consideration: if the employee has been absent on a long-term basis

- if a reasonable period of recovery has been given
- if medical advice has been sought and considered
- if a return to work in the short-term is unlikely

- if there are reasonable adjustments that would enable the employee to return to work
- if we can demonstrate that a longer period of absence cannot be sustained operationally.

13.6 Duration of warnings

In circumstances where a warning is issued, it will be 'live' for a period of 12 months, unless the employee is notified otherwise.

13.7 Appeal

The employee has the right to appeal against any formal sanction. To exercise this right, they must write to the person specified clearly stating the grounds for appeal, within 7 days of receipt of the letter.

An appeal will be heard by an appropriate person who was not involved in the original meeting.

At our discretion, the appeal will be a rehearing or a review of the original decision.

New evidence will only be considered if relevant and there is sufficient reason why this was not referenced earlier.

14. ILL HEALTH RETIREMENT

Ill health retirement can be considered before the decision is taken to terminate employment. Illhealth retirement is subject to the eligibility criteria being met, as set out by the relevant pension provider.

For non-teaching / support staff, in some circumstances, it may be possible to mutually agree a date that employment will end, avoiding the need for a formal hearing, however the end of employment must still be treated as a dismissal.



15. APPENDIX 1 – Sick Pay Entitlement (teachers under the 'burgundy book')

Teachers	
During the first year of service	Full pay for 25 working days and after completing 4 calendar months' service half pay for 50 working days
During the second year of service	Full pay for 50 working days and half pay for 50 working days
During the third year of service	Full pay for 75 days and half pay for 75 working days
During the fourth year and successive years	Full pay for 100 working days and half pay for 100 working days

Note 1: For teachers, working days are the days defined as "directed time" (currently 195 per academic year). Years of service are based on aggregated service.



16. APPENDIX 2a - Sick Pay Entitlement (support staff) – 2023 Future Workforce Terms

Table C – 2023 Future Workforce Collective Agreement								
	controlled Settings plus those schools, settings and tive agreement applicable from 01 April 2024.							
During the first year of Local Government service	1 month's full pay and one month's half pay							
During the second year of Local Government service	2 months' full pay and 2 months' half pay							
During the third year of Local Government service	3 months' full pay and 3 months' half pay							
During the fourth year of qualifying service and thereafter	4 months' full pay and 4 months' half pay							
During the fifth year of Local Government service	5 months' full pay and 5 months' half pay							
During the sixth year of qualifying service and thereafter	6 months' full pay and 6 months' half pay							
Additional Disability Leave allowance	Up to 5 extra days paid disability leave per year available to those employees who have a disability defined by the Equality Act 2010.							
Additional Pregnancy related sick leave	Up to 5 extra days' paid pregnancy related sick leave for women who experience pregnancy related sickness.							
Note 1: For occupational sick pay entitlement record purposes (and without prejudice to the National Council's arrangements for self-certification days and to any local agreements on "qualifying days" for statutory sick pay purposes) "one month" is deemed to be equivalent to 26 working days, Saturday being reckoned in all cases as a working day.								
Note 2: Entitlement is based on continuous service.								



17. APPENDIX 3 - Self-certification and return to work meeting

User Guidanc	e Note	s																			
This form should be completed using block capitals and placed on the employee's file. In addition, a copy should be given to the employee. Please ensure that you complete all sections of the form.																					
Part One-Employee details																					
Title	First name									am	e								Initials		
Job Title	Payroll Number																				
Part Two - De	etails o	f Sick	ness		<u> </u>		1										1				
Number of Absent	days	Star	rt dat	e of s	ickne	ess	Last date of sickness														
Working days																					
Calendar Days		Please tick this box if the sickness was over 7 calendar days Please attach a fit note/GP's certificate.																			
Part Three –	Part Three – Return to work meeting																				
Line Manager	r's Nam	ie																			
Date of meeting																					
Location of m	eeting																				
People preser	nt at m	eetin	ng																		
Back problem	IS			Μ	uscu	ılar Sl	keleta	al	[St	tress/	'Depr	essi	on/	'Anx	kiety				
Carcinoma				Сс	olds				[Fl	lu									
Infections				He	eada	che/	Migr	aine	[E	ye Di	sorde	r							
Ear, Nose & T	hroat			Uı	rinar	y Tra	ct inf	ectic	on [Ρ	regna	ncy F	Relat	ted						
Stomach Alim	nents			He	eart	probl	ems		[R	espira	atory	/Che	est/	Ast	hma				
Other (please	specif	y):																			
Details of iter	ns disc	ussed	k																		
Risk Assessme	ent rev	iewe	d or c	ondu	icted	l? Yes	5 🗌 /	/ No													
Have any hea	lth rev	iew t	rigger	s bee	en re	ache	d? Ye	es 🗌] / No												
Health reviewWhen the	ere are	3 or							-		-		-								
When an										•							-		•		
When an	absen	ce ap	pear	s to r	iave	a reo	cogni	sable	e patte	ern,	TO	r exa	mple	trec	lne	nt a	osen	ice a	roun	d a	

weekend											
• When an employee's sickness absence is for a continuous period of at least 28 calendar days											
 When there are a series of absences which impact on service delivery 											
• Has an Attendance Improvement Plan (AIP)been set recently (this may be set prior to trigger point											
being met).											
Yes [] (If yes, consider arranging a formal absence review meeting and inform employee that they <i>may</i> be issued with a formal warning)											
No 🗌	0.										
Attendance Improvement Plan	set? Yes 🗌 / N	lo 🗌									
Details of support offered/ rea	sonable adjustn	nents o	ffered								
Details of the impact of the ab	Details of the impact of the absence on the employer/ employee's workload										
Deferred to Occupational Lload	th? Yes 🗌 / No										
Referred to Occupational Heal											
Part Four – Authorisation											
I certify I was absent from wor											
Please note: Knowingly makin	ig a false staten	nent m	ay resul	t in disc	ciplinary	actior	n being	taken a	and sick		
pay being terminated.											
Employee Signature:	Name						1	1	T		
	Date					2	0				
I certify that I have discussed t been completed.	this absence wit	th the e	employe	e and tl	nat the	necess	ary cert	ificatio	ns have		
Manager Signature:	Name										
00	Date					2	0				
	Dutt					-	Ŭ				

